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1.5 Daniel Defoe in his topographical work' - “A Tour
Through England and Wales” published in 1726 describes
Honiton as follows:

“.. a large and beautiful market town, very
populous and well-built, and is so very remarkably paved with
small pebbles..that it holds a small stream..with a little square
dipping place left at every door, so that every family in the town
has a clear clean running river, (as it may be call'd) just at their
own door.”

1.6 The two traditional industries established in the town
were the manufacturing of serges and of lace. Honiton is the first
settlement in Devon to have had a flourishing woollen industry
(during the 17th and 18th centuries). Lace manufacture of fine
quality is thought to have been introduced by Dutch refugees in
Elizabethan times, reaching a peak of fame in the 19th century
under royal patronage. Like many inland market towns of Devon
the population of Honiton peaked in the 1840’ and then
declined gradually until recent decades. Fire devastated the town
several times; in 1672, 1747, 1754 and 1765, when 115 houses
were burned. This accounts for the present appearance of a late
18th or early 19th century town with a considerable amount of
pleasant buildings of this date. The later plan is a2 medieval
partern with wide main street and back lanes; that on the south
side still evident. There was formerly a central Shambles in the
High Street, but this was removed in 1823.

1.7 Of local traditions still maintained, a colourful St
Margaret’s Day Fair in mid-July perpetuates several ancient
customs.

1.8 To give an indicarion of the phases of development of
the town; the population in 1851 was 3,427, had declined to
3,216 in 1891, and is currently over 6,000, reflecting the consid-
erable residential expansion of the town, particularly since 1945.

1 A Tour Through England and Wiles” published in rwo volumes 1724-26
2 Publithed as the Honiton Repors, Devon County Council, 1972
3 Bridget Cherry and Nikolaus Peviner, The Buildings of England, Second Edition, 1989

2 SETTING OF THE
CONSERVATION AREA

History and Extent

21 The present Honiton Conservation Area mainly
comprises the two main frontages to High Street, and part of
New Street towards the former Parish Church.

22 The special character of Honiton was recognised by
both the Borough and County Councils in 1972 when the town
was the subject of comprehensive study.? The report recom-
mended designation of a Conservation Area which was
formalised later that year.

2.3 Within the existing conservation area are 136 individ-
ually listed buildings, some in groups, giving 90 separate list
entries, with an additional 51 individual buildings included on
the local list, which is non-statutory. Both types are shown on
Map 1.

Basic Form and Layout

2.4 High Street follows the alignment of the original Fosse
‘Way between Exeter and Lincoln, and this established a
continuing role in the subsequent importance of the town. It is
not known for certain whether there was a Roman settlement of
any consequence at this point. The present settlement pattern is
fairly typical of a medieval town of the 13th century, laid out
along both sides of the through road, with rear lanes set back a
considerable distance. By the carly 15th century a pattern of long
narrow Burgage plots had become firmly established.

2.5 In the 17th century the manufacture of woollen cloth
eclipsed the lace industry, placing Honiton ar the forefront of the
Devon cloth industry until large mechanised 19th century mills
were built at Tiverton and Ottery St. Mary. Earlier housing in
Honiton appears to have been densely built which no doubt
accounted for the several disastrous fires that ravaged the town
between 1672 and 1765. There are now only a few buildings that
survive from that period, mainly towards the edge of the rown

centre.

2.6 The town centre today presents the appearance of a late
18th and early 19th century market town. The importance of the
textile and hostelry trades produced some elegant buildings on
either side of the High Street, with a further more modest group
on the east side of New Street. Within these continuous frontages
are the several imposing former coaching inns. Towards the edge
of the town centre are several detached villas in landscaped
settings, some now containing recent housing developments of

varying quality.
2.7 The High Street has suffered somewhat from the loss of
historic shopfronts and some overbearing signage, but the overall

scale and appearance of the town centre today remains largely
unspoilt with only “a few jarring notes”. 7
















































¢. 1905 Ordnance Survey Second Edition. Scale originally 25 inches to the mile (scale may be alered for the purpose of fitting the report)
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